
 

 

 
 

#plymplanning 

 
 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday 14 November 2024 

4.00 pm 

Council Chamber, Council House 
 

Members: 

Councillor Stevens, Chair 

Councillor Penrose, Vice Chair 

Councillors Allen, Mrs Bridgeman, Darcy, Freeman, Goslin, McCarty, McNamara, Ney, Reilly, M. 

Smith, Sproston and Ms Watkin. 
 

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf. 
 

This meeting will be webcast and available on-line after the meeting.  By entering the Council 

Chamber, councillors are consenting to being filmed during the meeting and to the use of the 

recording for the webcast. 
 

The Council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act.  Data collected during this 

webcast will be retained in accordance with authority’s published policy. 

 

You can watch any of our webcast meetings on YouTube. For further information on attending 

Council meetings and how to engage in the democratic process please follow this link – Get 
Involved 
 

 

Tracey Lee 

Chief Executive 

 

 Overisght and Governance 

Chief Executive’s Department 

Plymouth City Council 

Ballard House 

Plymouth  PL1 3BJ 

 

Please ask for Joshua Longstaff 

T 01752 668000 

E democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk 

www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 

Published 05 November 2024 

https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PLW0qNdfVlat35d9TRrIZF8fstPQ3ucVRl
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/get-involved
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/get-involved
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/


 

 

 

Planning Committee 
 

 

AGENDA 

 

PART I – PUBLIC MEETING 

  

1. Apologies    
  

 To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Committee Members.  

  

2. Declarations of Interest    

  

 Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this 

agenda. 

  

3. Minutes   (Pages 1 - 4) 

  

 The Committee will be asked to confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 24 October 

2024 

  

4. Chair's Urgent Business    

  

 To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 

forward for urgent consideration. 

  

5. Questions from Members of the Public    

  

 The Chair will receive and respond to questions from members of the public submitted in 

accordance with the Council’s procedures. Questions shall not normally exceed 50 

words in length and the total length of time allowed for public questions shall not exceed 

10 minutes. Any question not answered within the total time allowed shall be the subject 

of a written response. 

  

6. Planning Applications for Consideration    

  

 The Assistant Director for Strategic Planning and Infrastructure will submit a schedule 

asking Members to consider Applications, Development proposals by Local Authorities 

and statutory consultations under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and the 
Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 

  

 6.1. 24/00893/FUL - Home Park Football Ground, Outland Road,  

PL2 3DQ 

(Pages 5 - 22) 

   

  Applicant: Mr Christian Kent 

Ward: Peverell 

Recommendation: Grant Conditonally  
 

   



 

 

7. Planning Application Decisions Issued   (Pages 23 - 30) 

  

 The Director for Strategic Planning and Infrastructure, acting under powers delegated to 

him by the Council, will submit a schedule outlining all decisions issued since the 

previously convened sitting.  

 

1)  Committee decisions; 

2)  Delegated decisions, subject to conditions where so indicated; 

3)  Applications withdrawn; 

4)  Applications returned as invalid. 

 

Please note that these Delegated Planning Applications are available to view online at: 

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningapplicationsv4/welcome.asp  

  

8. Appeal Decisions   (Pages 31 - 32) 

  

 A schedule of decisions made by the Planning Inspectorate on appeals arising from the 

decision of the City Council will be submitted.  Please note that these Delegated Planning 
Applications are available to view online at:  

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningapplicationsv4/welcome.asp  

  

9. Exempt Business    

  

 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 

1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) of 

business on the grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt 

information as defined in paragraph(s) … of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as 

amended by the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  

  

 

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningapplicationsv4/welcome.asp
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningapplicationsv4/welcome.asp


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Planning Committee Thursday 24 October 2024 

Planning Committee 
 

Thursday 24 October 2024 

 

PRESENT: 

 

Councillor Stevens, in the Chair. 

Councillor Penrose, Vice Chair. 

Councillors Allen, Mrs Bridgeman, Goslin, Hendy (substituting for Reilly), McCarty, 

McNamara, Raynsford (substituting for Ney), M. Smith, Sproston and Ms Watkin. 

 

Apologies for absence: Councillors Darcy, Ney and Reilly.  

 

Also in attendance: Councillor Steven Ricketts, Natalie Gloyn (Lawyer), Macauley 

Potter (Planning Officer), Sam Lewis (Planning Officer), Joshua Longstaff 

(Democratic Advisor), Jake Metcalf (Democratic Advisor), Stuart Wingfield (Head 

of Development Management), Jason Battle (Public Speaker item 6.3), Matthew 

Fleming (Public Speaker, item 6.3). 

 

The meeting started at 4.00 pm and finished at 5.03 pm. 

 

Note: At a future meeting, the committee will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes, 

so they may be subject to change.  Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm 

whether these minutes have been amended. 
 

32. Declarations of Interest   

 

 

Councillor Item  Reason Interest  

Allen 6.2 Applicant known to  

Councillor.  

Private 

Mrs Bridgeman 6.2 Applicant known to 

Councillor. 

Private 

Goslin 6.2 Applicant known to 

Councillor. 

Private 

Hendy 6.2 Applicant known to 

Councillor. 

Private 

McCarty  6.2 Applicant known to 

Councillor. 

Private 

McNamara 6.2 Applicant known to 

Councillor. 

Private 

Penrose 6.2 Applicant known to 

Councillor. 

Private 

Raynsford 6.2 Applicant known to 

Councillor. 

Private 

M. Smith 6.2 Applicant known to 

Councillor. 

Private 

Sproston 6.2 Applicant known to 

Councillor. 

Private 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



 

Planning Committee Thursday 24 October 2024 

Stevens 6.2 Applicant known to 

Councillor. 

Private 

Ms Watkin 6.2 Applicant known to 

Councillor. 

Private 

 

33. Minutes   

 

The minutes of the meeting held on 19 September 2024 were agreed as a true and 

accurate record. 

 

34. Chair's Urgent Business   

 

There were no items of Chair’s urgent business. 

 

35. Questions from Members of the Public   

 

There were no questions from members of the public. 

 

36. Planning Applications for Consideration   

 

The Committee considered the following applications, development proposals by 

local authorities and statutory consultations submitted under the Town and Country 

Planning Act, 1990, and the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservations Areas) Act, 

1990. 

 

37. 24/00988/FUL - 31 North Road East, PL4 6AY   

 

Applicant: Mr Jaswinder Dhariwal 

Ward: Drake 

Decision: Application granted conditionally.  
 

Sam Lewis (Planning Officer) presented the report to the committee.  

 

Councillor Ricketts spoke on the application in capacity of Ward Councillor.  

 

The Committee agreed to grant the application.   

 

For (11) 

Councillors Allen, Goslin, Hendy, McCarty, McNamara, Penrose, Raynsford, M. 

Smith, Sproston, Stevens and Ms Watkin. 

 

Against (1)  

Councillor Ms Bridgeman 

 

Abstain (0) 

 

Absent/Did not vote (0) 

 

38. 24/01074/LBC - The Stables, 41 Conqueror Drive, PL5 3UT   

 

Page 2



 

Planning Committee Thursday 24 October 2024 

Applicant: Councillor Tess Blight. 

Ward: Eggbuckland. 

Decision:  Application granted conditionally 

 

The committee agreed to grant the application. 

 

For (12) 

Councillors Allen, Mrs Bridgeman, Goslin, Hendy, McCarty, McNamara, Penrose, 

Raynsford, M. Smith, Sproston, Stevens and Ms Watkin. 

 

Against (0) 

 

Abstain (0) 

 

Absent (0) 
 

39. 24/00371/FUL - Land Adjacent To Wilmot Gardens, PL5 3TP   

 

Applicant: Darren Wills 

Ward: Honicknowle 

Decision: Application granted conditionally. 

 

Macauley Potter (Planning Officer) presented the report. 

 

Matt Fleming spoke in objection to the application.   

 

Jason Battle spoke in support of the application on behalf of the applicant.   

 

For (10) 

Councillors Allen, Goslin, Hendy, McCarty, McNamara, Penrose, Raynsford, M. 

Smith, Sproston and Stevens. 

 

Against (0) 

 

Abstain (2) 

Councillors Ms Watkin and Mrs Bridgeman. 

 

Absent/Did Not Vote (0) 

 

40. Planning Application Decisions Issued   

 

The Committee noted the report from the Director for Strategic Planning and 

Infrastructure on decisions issued for the period 10 September 2024 to 14 October 

2024.  

 
41. Appeal Decisions   

 

There were no appeal decisions.  

 

42. Exempt Business   

Page 3



 

Planning Committee Thursday 24 October 2024 

 

There were no items of exempt business. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 4



 

PLANNING APPLICATION 
OFFICERS REPORT

Site Address Home Park Football Ground  Outland Road  Plymouth  PL2 3DQ    

Proposal
Temporary marquee to be used by the Green Taverners Members 
Club (Sui Generis) with associated development including portacabins 
for use as toilets, cellar storage and rainwater storage tank.

Applicant Mr Christian Kent

Application Type Full Application

Target Date   30.09.2024
Committee 
Date 14.11.2024

Extended Target Date N/A

Decision Category Councillor Referral

Case Officer Miss Amy Thompson

Recommendation Grant Conditionally

Application 
Number  24/00893/FUL Item 01

Date Valid 05.08.2024 Ward PEVERELL

Page 5 Agenda Item 6.1



This application has been referred to Planning Committee by Cllr Kate Taylor 

1.  Description of Site
Home Park is a football ground and the home of Plymouth Argyle. As a result the site itself is large, 
but this application is only concerned with a small portion to the south of the stadium. The site falls 
within the Peverell ward of the city.

2.  Proposal Description
Temporary marquee to be used by the Green Taverners Members Club (Sui Generis) with 
associated development including portacabins for use as toilets, cellar storage and rainwater storage 
tank.

3. Pre-application Enquiry
None. 

Page 6



4. Relevant Planning History
01/00085/FUL - Redevelopment in phases of existing football stadium to create an all seater stadium 
of approximately 19,000 capacity with associated pedestrian and vehicular accesses, car parking and 
floodlighting- Granted conditionally 

03/01057/FUL - Erection of marquee for use for match day hospitality on waste ground adjacent to 
existing offices for a temporary period of two years - Granted conditionally 

13/00942/FUL - Redevelopment to include the provision of a new south grandstand incorporating 
ancillary club retail and hospitality facilities, the erection of a 10 screen multiplex cinema (with 
IMAX), ice arena, 121 bed hotel, medical centre, 3293sq metres of restaurant/café floorspace (Use 
Class A3), 1725sq metres of retail floorspace (Use Class A1), community facilities and associated car 
parking, access, landscaping, servicing and works- Granted with S106 Agreement

17/01684/OUT - Hybrid Application comprising two parts:
(Part 1) Full Planning Permission for the refurbishment and extension to Home Park Stadium 
Grandstand (including ancillary area within the ground) (Class D2) and Erection of New Ice Arena 
(Class D2) with associated car parking, landscaping, public realm and highways access.
(Part 2) Outline Planning Permission for mixed use development including Food and Beverage Units 
(Class A3/A4), Offices (Class B1), Gymnasium (Class D2), Hotel (Class C1) and Veterinary Surgery 
(Class D1) with all matters reserved except highways access and parking. Granted with S106 
Agreement

18/01335/FUL - New 2-storey Green Tavenors Building (Class A4) within the boundary of Plymouth 
Argyle Football Club - Granted conditionally 

19/01281/S73 - Variation of condition 5 (Opening Hours - Green Tavenors Members Bar) of 
application 18/01335/FUL - Granted conditionally 

21/02103/FUL - Re-configuration of existing car park and associated external works - Granted 
conditionally 

There have also been a number of other planning applications relating to the wider Home Park site 
over the years, but no others directly related to the proposed development.

5. Consultation Responses
Local Highway Authority - Originally raised concerns but further information has been submitted to 
overcome the concerns raised. 

Sport England - No objection. 

Designing Out Crime Officer - No objection.

Public Protection Service - No objection, recommended conditions. 

Lead Local Flood Authority - No objection

Page 7



6. Representations
83 public comments received from 77 different contributors. One of the contributors objected to 
the proposal, one contributor was neutral and the other 75 contributors supported the scheme. 

The main concerns raised by the contributor objecting to the proposal include: 
- Noise disturbance and pollution from amplified music, entertainment, generators, 

refrigeration, heating equipment and people, and impact on public amenity and Central Park
- The lack of sound insulation from the marquee
- Requests a noise assessment 
- Suggests the marquee is sound proofed, acoustic fence and sound system and noise limiting 

devises 
- Suggests conditions to restrict the use of the marquee to only on first team home matchdays 

for only match ticket holders limiting the opening hours to 2 hours before kick off and 1 hour 
after the game

- Suggests replacing marquee with modular units, requiring sound lobbies on all access points 
- Impact on the quiet amenities of Central Park 
- Impact on visual amenity
- Screening should be provided to improve visual amenity and noise impact
- No details on what happens to rainwater overflowing from the proposed water butts
- Emptying of portaloos creating a smell, details needed of drainage connection for sewage and 

waste water disposal
- Concerned that ground incursions will be required 
- Legionella, insect and rodent controls 
- Climate impact from heat from the marquee, refrigeration, lighting energy requirements and 

use of generators. 
- Unauthorised fan zone on site being used for events independent from the use of Home Park 

Stadium 
- Unauthorised marquee used by Green Taverners at Harpers 
- Unauthorised marquee for the use as a gym on site
- Existing Green Taverners marquee accepts non-members on match days
- Unclear if staff, entertainer and under 18s are included in licensed 600 attendees and needs 

to comply with PAFC General Safety Certificate 
- No mention of opening times of the marquee for games covered by Sky and it could attract 

for away games screened by Sky
- Unless guaranteed to 600 admitted that have match tickets there will be an increase in those 

travelling to Home Park 
- Put pressure on availability for Park and Ride Car Park places and loss of public amenity 
- Already have problems with parking on site that is likely detrimental to public and highway 

safety
- No public parking as allowed in the car park to the east of the marquee
- Does not promote non-car modes of travel
- Increasing parking pressures 
- Exact figures of what is required in terms of capacity and delivery traffic movement, especially 

food and drink deliveries haven't been submitted.  
- Submitted information states that food will not be served but Green Taverners website 

makes reference to food being served in marquee 
- Food will probably be supplied from PAFC and will increase catering traffic on the shared 

road and impact on pedestrian path and cycle lane
- 700 + members trying to access a 600 capacity marquee will put pressure on management to 

control access.

The letters of support raised the following points: 
- Provides betterment/ enhance Plymouth and Plymouth Argyle Football Club (PAFC)

Page 8



- Location of marquee is no different to what has been there before
- Users of the marquee will be existing users of the old facility/ already visiting Home Park for a 

match
- Will enhance visitor experience 
- Management of the facility will be the same as the successfully managed previous Green 

Taverners site
- Delaying application will hurt business 
- Add funds to the local economy 
- Will not disturb or impact local residents  
- People in area have been respectful of the surroundings
- Provides a safe and enjoyable meeting place
- Green Taverners do a lot for fans and community 
- Marquee is situated in stadium ground so would not impact on Central Park
- Noise and traffic related to match days will still be present with or without the marquee but 

it could ease arrival and dispersal of people 
- Number of people going to PAFC is limited by ground capacity 
- Facility is run under strict membership rules and security is in place 
- Outland Road will not see any heavier traffic or the noise will not be any greater
- Provides a community hub to the supporters
- They run well organised events, showing respect for residents and the PAFC
- They provide help and charity and opportunities to young people offering volunteering and 

employment opportunities
- PCC have created a precedent of allowing many festivals and events throughout the year in 

Central Park
- Part of match day experience 
- Level access and proximity to drop off site means it can be enjoyed by all
- Plymouth Argyle Football Club was in the area first (1901) compared to Central Park (1928)
- To lose it would be detrimental to social events that are important in promoting mental 

health and feeling of isolation 
- Have a track record regarding noise in the park and respect the environment. 
- Enhance local infrastructure, provide vital amenities, creates opportunities for engagement 

and activities and instils sense of purpose and belonging 
- Offers value for money that ensures resources are invested wisely for long term benefits.  
- Will be no extra traffic as fans already going to area
- Noise already within the grounds and doubt noise from marquee would be heard over it

7. Relevant Policy Framework
Section 70 of the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act requires that regard be had to the 
development plan, national development management policies, local finance and any other material 
considerations. Section 38(5B) of the 2004 Planning and Compensation Act sets out that the 
determination of any matter under the planning Acts must be made in accordance with the 
development plan and any national development management policies, taken together, unless 
material considerations strongly indicate otherwise.  For the purposes of decision making, as on 
March 26th 2019, the Plymouth & South West Devon Joint Local Plan 2014 - 2034 is now part of the 
development plan for Plymouth City Council, South Hams District Council and West Devon 
Borough Council (other than parts South Hams and West Devon within Dartmoor National Park).

Other material considerations include the Joint Local Plan Five Year Review Report (March 2024), 
the policies of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), Planning Practice Guidance (PPG), 
National Design Guidance, the scale and urgency of the climate change emergency, Plymouth City 
Councils Declaration on Climate Emergency (March 2019) for a carbon neutral city by 2030 and the 
Plymouth and South West Devon Climate Emergency Planning Statement (CEPS) 2022. Additionally, 

Page 9



the following planning documents are also material considerations in the determination of the 
application: 
- The Plymouth and South West Devon Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) (2020).
- Central Park Masterplan 2017

8. Analysis
1. This application has been considered in the context of the development plan, the Framework 

and other material considerations as set out in Section 7.

2. The application turns upon policies PLY58.2 - Home Park, DEV1 (Protecting health and 
amenity), DEV2 (Air, water, soil, noise, land and light), DEV20 (Place shaping and quality of 
the built environment), DEV29 (Specific provisions relating to transport), DEV31 (Waste 
management), DEV32 (Delivering low carbon development) and DEV35 (Managing flood risk 
and water quality impacts) of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan 2014-
2034 (2019) and the National Policy Framework. The key material planning considerations for 
this planning application are:
- Principle of development
- Impact on the character and appearance of the area
- Impact on amenity 
- Impact on local highway 

Principle of development
3. The application site is allocated within the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan 

under policy PLY58.2 - Home Park, as a development site, proposing the 'Completion of 
Stadium Improvement and Appropriate Ancillary Uses'. The policy sets out that the following 
should be provided by development:

i. Access improvements to be delivered in accordance with transport assessment for the 
proposal.

ii. Enabling uses could be acceptable provided that they are of a scale and nature that 
complement but do not prejudice the sporting use of Home Park and the wider recreational 
use of Central Park.

4. The proposal seeks permission to erect a temporary marquee to be used by the Green 
Taverners Members Club. The development also includes portacabins for use as toilets, cellar 
storage and rainwater storage tank.

5. The Green Taverners were set up in 2011 to support Plymouth Argyle Football Club through 
their administration. It started as a group of volunteers and now is a larger network of people 
that has a membership scheme. The Green Taverners raise money, organise events and 
provide a venue for Plymouth Argyle supporters. 

6. The Green Taverners were previously granted consent in 2018 for a two storey building 
adjacent to Home Park Stadium to be used as a supporters bar. The Green Taverners bar 
was erected and has been used for the last 5 years. The building has since been purchased by 
Plymouth Argyle to be used as a hospitality space. The Green Taverners are therefore 
seeking permission for a marquee for a three year period to continue operating a supporters 
bar at Home Park. 

7. A supporting statement has been submitted with the application from Plymouth Argyle 
Football Club which states that:

Page 10



8. "The Green Taverners have been a key component in the club's success, not just over the 
past five years, but also historically having been a key stakeholder in ensuring the club's 
financial stability during administration. The Green Taverners and its members have 
continued to support the club through the Green Taverners suite at Home Park."

9. The statement concludes by saying:
"The football club has offered the Green Taverners it's explicit support in this venture and 
wholeheartedly supports the planning application. The club looks forward to working with 
the Green Taverners in the coming years in enhancing the matchday experience for all."

10. The development is set within the confines of the Home Park site and would be of a scale 
and nature that would complement the existing sporting use of Home Park. It is considered 
that the principle of the development would not prejudice the sporting use of Home Park and 
the wider recreational use of Central Park. The Green Taverners have previously been 
granted permission on site for a supporters bar, it is therefore considered that the principle 
of the development is acceptable and is in accordance with policy PLY58.2 of the Joint Local 
Plan.

Impact on the character and appearance of the area
11. The marquee is proposed to be situated on land south of the stadium, opposite the 

Mayflower Grandstand and adjacent to the parking area. The proposed marquee is 35m long 
and 15m wide, 3m to its eaves and 5.4m to its ridge. Along the western elevation of the 
proposed marquee would be portacabins containing men's and women's toilets and a 
separate disabled toilet with level access from the finished floor level of the marquee. An 
additional portacabin would provide the cellar storage for the adjoining bar area. In the 
south-west corner is a rainwater storage tank that will contain the marquee surface water 
roof run-off and supply 'grey water' to the proposed toilets. 

12. The proposed marquee would be a steel structure faced with white PVC faced panels and 
completed with a pitched canvas style roof. Alongside the proposed marquee would be 
integrated steel portacabins that would be painted white/green.

13. The proposed development is quite a substantial structure but due to its single storey nature 
and positioning behind the Life Centre and Home Park Stadium it is largely screened from 
public views. It would be partially visible from the shared road between the application site 
and the Life Centre and from parts of Central Park such as Gilbert Lane (Mayflower Walk).  
Whilst the design of the marquee structure is simple in nature, and its overall contribution to 
the streetscene and appearance of the area is out of character and not of a high quality, 
Officers recognise that its temporary nature does not significantly harm the character of the 
area in the long term. Officers do not consider the marquee to be a suitable long-term 
solution. The supporting information has stated that the intention is for the marquee to be 
temporary, with it being there for three years which would align with the lease offered to the 
Green Taverners. The supporting information states that a masterplan is being considered by 
Plymouth Argyle to develop this area and will include discussions about permanent future 
accommodation for the Green Taverners. Given the temporary nature, it is considered that 
the proposed development is acceptable, on balance. 

14. A condition restricting this timescale has been recommended and, taking the above into 
account, Officers consider that the scheme does not conflict with DEV20 of the JLP.

Amenity Impact
15. The proposed marquee is intended to fulfil the same function as the previously consented 

Green Taverners building except food will not be served as there is no kitchen facility being 

Page 11



proposed. It will be used as a supporters bar that is open to Green Taverners members but 
also available for events such as fundraisers and birthday parties. The marquee would have a 
capacity of 450 to 600 people. 

16. Due to the location of the site, Officers do not consider that the proposal would lead to any 
significant massing, loss of light, or privacy concerns. The main consideration is the noise 
impact from the use of the marquee. 

17. The closest residential properties are located on Outland Road which are approximately 
250m away from the application site. Between the application site and these residential 
properties is Outland Road, which is a very busy route into the City and the Life Centre.  
The site is situated a fair distance from the nearest residential properties. The Public 
Protection Service were consulted on the scheme and they have not raised any objections 
from a noise perspective. They have advised that they had been consulted on this application 
as part of the licensing process and conditions have been added to the premises licence in 
accordance with the Council's licensing policy. The Public Protection Service have 
recommended a condition that restricts the opening hours from 08.00 to 00.30 hours. The 
Public Protection Service would also be the body responsible for investigating any noise 
complaints made. Officers do not consider that the scheme's noise impact would be 
significant enough to warrant a refusal of planning permission. 

18. Concerns have been raised regarding the impact of the development on the amenity and 
recreational use of Central Park. While the application is not set within the Central Park 
boundary concerns have been raised regarding noise that would impact on the enjoyment of 
Central Park. 

19. Central Park is allocated in the Joint Local Plan as a strategic green space under policy PLY19 
and is described in the plan as a 'premier park for the people of Plymouth.  It will become an 
outstanding venue of regional and national significance for active recreation and formal sport, 
culture, art and the natural environment.  As part of the growth of the city significant 
improvements will be delivered to enhance the recreational and sporting facilities as well as 
increasing the wildlife and community value of the park.  This will ensure the park provides 
significant health and well-being benefits for communities, a vibrant and diverse hub for formal 
sport and recreational activities, and a space where people can access nature'.  The policy 
seeks:
- Create a park with high quality, vibrant spaces that encourage a diversity of uses and is 
accessible to communities across Plymouth and beyond.
- Enhancing existing and creating new sporting facilities that develop the park's role as a key 
sporting facility for the city and region whilst being sensitive to the park's natural and historic 
features.
- Strengthening the links between the Life Centre and the sporting facilities within the park to 
deliver the highest quality sporting and recreational offer, catering for people of all abilities.

20. The policy also states that any developments around the periphery of the park should be 
sensitive to the purpose of the park and the natural and built assets it contains.

21. Having carefully considered the submitted information and the concerns raised by the public, 
it is considered that the proposed temporary marquee would not conflict with the Central 
Park policy. While there will be noise from the use of the marquee it is not considered it 
would be significant enough to warrant the refusal of this application. Restrictive conditions 
have been recommended that would ensure that the marquee is adequately managed and 
maintained as to ensure that there is not a detrimental impact on the amenity of visitors/ 
users of Central Park. 

Page 12



22. Conditions have been recommended that restrict the opening hours to align with those 
imposed by licensing and requiring the submission of a management plan. Therefore, it is 
considered that with the recommended conditions the proposal would not have a 
detrimental impact on amenity in line with DEV1 and DEV2 of the JLP.

Highway Impact
23. The Highway Authority (LHA) were consulted on the scheme, and initially raised concerns 

and sought further information. The LHA were concerned about the intensification of the site 
and the possible net addition of event space causing an unmanaged increase in trips.  The 
LHA were concerned about the lack of parking (cycle, accessible and EV), additional traffic 
movements, lack of travel plan and lack of loading and unloading provision. 

24. The applicant submitted a response to the LHA's initial comments, raising the following 
points:
"Home Park Stadium is perhaps one of the most sustainably located football stadiums in the 
EFL. It is located on a main bus route which links the ground to the city centre, the suburbs 
of all parts of the city, Tavistock and west Devon as well as Cornwall".
"Match day buses run from existing park and ride sites, the city centre and Plympton and 
Plymstock. In addition, the Club is this season offering four new additional specific match day 
bus services".
"In addition, the stadium is a short walk from the city's main line station which serves 
Cornwall and Devon".
"The Club have facilitated a large coach parking area at Harpers (formerly Goals) which is a 
short walk from the ground".
"The Club have facilitated 190 match day car parking spaces at Devonport High School and 
75 spaces at Montpellier School. Both locations are within easy walking distance of the 
Stadium".
"Staff parking is offered at Scott Business Park which is also within easy walking distance".
"The Club now operate an EV salary sacrifice scheme within the club which several members 
of staff have taken up and car share now".

25. The statement confirms that the proposal would not be including any additional parking 
(including EV and accessible spaces) given that it's a temporary proposal. It states that if the 
marquee is in operation on non-match days people would use walking, cycling, buses, coaches 
and trains. It also cites the availability of a large car park with EV chargers adjacent to the site 
and public parking in the main central park car park located directly in front of Home Park. 

26. With regards to loading and unloading they advised that deliveries will be undertaken on non-
match days when the level of vehicular and pedestrian activity will be minimal and the 
majority of the deliveries would be carried out in the deliveries area within the site (via the 
access gates). They also advised that there is space for cycle parking around the marquee but 
because of the temporary nature it shouldn't be required and will be something they consider 
as part of the Home Park Masterplan. 

27. A Transport Statement (TS) was also submitted which considered match days and non- 
match days, which details the transport impacts from the proposed development. Within the 
TS it stated that the marquee would be a members only bar on match days. It states that the 
proposed marquee will not be open to the general public and only open to members, with 
staff on the door to check memberships on arrival. The marquee will be open to members 
before and after the game and is not open to anyone during the game or at half time, with 
only staff allowed in the building for cleaning and re-stocking. Therefore on match day, people 
visiting the marquee will be people that are already attending Home Park to watch the match. 

Page 13



28. On non-match days the marquee is intended to be used in the same way as the previously 
consented Green Taverners building which was granted consent in 2018. The building had a 
capacity of around 600 and the use of the building was originally permitted for 7-days a week 
between 10.00hrs and 00.30hrs and later extended to 02.00hrs to align with the permitted 
Plymouth City Council licence conditions.

29. The TS states that Plymouth Argyle purchased this building in 2024 and it is now in use for 
Club hospitality on match days and club related purposes including player dining and meeting 
room facilities on non-match days.

30. The TS states that travel to the marquee will be exactly the same as for match days, walking, 
cycling, bus and train or taxi taking advantage of the site's sustainable location. Evening events 
will have use of the consented car park to the east of the proposed marquee. Day time 
parking will take place within the large Milehouse free car park immediately west of the 
Stadium which is available for public use 24 hours a day and seven days a week on an 
unrestricted basis.

31. The TS states that drop offs for passengers visiting the marquee will be the same as the 
former Green Taverners building through the shared surface highway that runs between the 
Stadium and the Life Centre from Jack Leslie Way, which is the road that runs around the 
perimeter of the Milehouse car park. The TS also states that there is a shared surface private 
road that runs between the Stadium and the area known as the Mayflower Quarter where 
the application site is. This road provides access to the rear of the Mayflower Grandstand, 
the former Green Taverners building and the Club car park. On non-match days this private 
road has a very low traffic use. It enables all deliveries to be made to the Club, the former 
Green Taverners building and the Mayflower Quarter without any impedance upon the low 
flow of traffic on the road. Deliveries to the proposed marquee will be made in the same 
way. Delivery vehicles are able turn at the car park entrance and exit the site in forward gear.

32. The Local Highway Authority considered the further details submitted and considered 
sufficient delivery arrangement details had been submitted. When considering parking the 
LHA accepted that on match days the marquee would not result in an increase in the number 
of vehicular movements in the vicinity of the stadium, or parking demand, as those attending 
will be attending the game. 

33. On non-match days the applicants have stated that evening events will have use of the 2021 
approved car park to the east of the proposed marquee and daytime parking will take place in 
the large free council car park to the West of the stadium. In terms of the 2021 approved car 
park, it is stated that no public parking will be allowed however the applicant has confirmed it 
is primarily GT members who will be using the marquee and therefore the 2021 approved 
car park. This is acceptable in principle to the LHA but have recommended condition 
requiring the submission of a management plan that includes parking arrangements to ensure 
parking is available and where it is not available a viable alternative is provided. 

34. The TS does not mention accessible parking, cycle parking, or a travel plan. The LHA have 
stated that they would usually expect to see these aspects covered in the context of a 
planning application where potentially new trips to or from a site are proposed. The 
submitted details have no evidence to demonstrate if new trips to the site will consistently 
occur over the three year proposed use period, particularly on non-match days.

Page 14



35.      The LHA have considered the submitted details and have stated that they are able to remove 
their objection but subject to their recommended conditions which require accordance with 
the submitted Transport Statement and the submission of a Management Plan for the site and 
a Travel Plan. Officers have considered the wording recommended for the Travel Plan and 
have amended it so that it more proportionate to the scale of the development. 

36. Having carefully considered the comments from the Local Highway Authority it is considered 
that on match days the marquee would not attract any more trips to the site than what 
already existed as people who will be visiting the marquee will already be attending a match 
at Home Park. On non-match day events it is considered that their may be an increase in 
visitors to the site but with the recommended conditions requiring the submission of a 
management plan and travel plan the proposal would not have significant impact on the local 
highway network and parking. Officers therefore consider that the scheme accords with 
DEV29 of the JLP. 

Drainage
37. The site is located in Flood Zone 1 and considered to be at a low risk from fluvial and tidal 

flooding. Surface water flood risk mapping indicates the site is at a low risk from a 1 in 100 
year return period event. 

38. The site is located in a Critical Drainage Area where the Environment Agency considers the 
existing drainage system to be at or close to capacity.

39. The applicant proposes to discharge surface water to the existing surface water drainage 
system installed for a previous planning application that meets Local Flood Risk Management 
Strategy requirements. Following review of the submitted information the LLFA have no 
objection to this application for a period of three years. The proposal is therefore considered 
the comply with policy DEV35 of the JLP.

Climate Emergency
40. Due to the scope of the development proposed and its temporary nature, Officers consider 

that it would not be proportionate to seek any low carbon mitigation measures in line with 
DEV32 of the JLP or the CEPS.

Biodiversity Net Gain
41. The proposal is exempt from Biodiversity Net Gain requirements and is considered 'de 

minimis' because no habitat is impacted by the development.

Habitats Regulation Assessment
42. The project has been considered in light of the assessment regulations of Regulation 63(1) of 

the Habitat Regulations 2017 by the above officer of Plymouth City Council. 

43. Having considered the nature, scale, timing, duration and location of the project, it was 
concluded that it be eliminated from further assessment because it cannot have a conceivable 
effect on a European site. The reason for this conclusion is that the project will not in itself 
impact, or the development is too far from the European site, and will not result in any 
pressures on the European sites.

Other Matters
44. Within the concerns raised through the public comments it was raised that the emptying of 

the Portaloo's/ toilets create smells, however it isn't considered that the smells generated 
from this would not be significant to warrant the refusal of this application as it would not be 
constant and would be temporary. 

Page 15



45. Concerns have also been raised regarding legionella, insect and rodent controls. It is not 
considered necessary to impose rodent controls as there is no kitchen facility proposed to 
serve food. Concerns about legionella bacteria are not a material planning consideration and 
is covered by health and safety law.   

46. It is noted that a public comment has raised concerns about climate impact from heat from 
the marquee, refrigeration, lighting energy requirements and use of generators however given 
the scale of the development and its temporary nature it isn't considered reasonable to seek 
any mitigation measures. Officers note that any permanent proposals for the site will need to 
consider climate emergency measures.

47. It is acknowledged that within the public comments concerns have been raised about 
unauthorised development on site, these matters are being looked into separately and do not 
affect the determination of this application which shall be judged on its own merits.

9. Human Rights
Human Rights Act - The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights 
Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself. This Act gives 
further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on Human Rights. In arriving at this 
recommendation, due regard has been given to the applicant's reasonable development rights and 
expectations which have been balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as 
expressed through third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government Guidance.

10. Local Finance Considerations
None. 

11. Planning Obligations
The purpose of planning obligations is to mitigate or compensate for adverse impacts of a 
development, or to prescribe or secure something that is needed to make the development 
acceptable in planning terms.  Planning obligations can only lawfully constitute a reason for granting 
planning permission where the three statutory tests of Regulation 122 of the CIL Regulations 2010 
are met.

Planning obligations are not sought due to the nature and size of proposal.

12. Equalities and Diversities
This planning application has had due regard to Section 149 of the Equality Act with regard to the 
Public Sector Equality Duty and has concluded that the application does not cause discrimination on 
the grounds of gender, race and disability.  

13. Conclusions and Reasons for Decision
Officers have taken account of the NPPF and S38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 and concluded that the notwithstanding the poor design quality, given the temporary nature of 
the proposal and the benefits it will provide to the sporting facilities, the proposal accords with 
policy and national guidance and is therefore recommended for conditional approval.

14. Recommendation

In respect of the application dated 05.08.2024 it is recommended to Grant Conditionally.

Page 16



15. Conditions / Reasons
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved 
plans: 

1 CONDITION: APPROVED PLANS

 Proposed Floor Plan P1259 - 03 Rev C  received 06/08/24
 Proposed Elevations P1259 - 04 Rev B  received 06/08/24
 Proposed Master Site Plan Indicating Site levels P1259 - 05 Rev A  received 06/08/24
 Proposed Site and Block Plans P1259 - 02 Rev C  received 06/08/24
 
Reason:
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of good planning, in accordance with the Plymouth & 
South West Devon Joint Local Plan 2014–2034 (2019).

 2 CONDITION: COMMENCE WITHIN 3 YEARS

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years beginning 
from the date of this permission.

Reason:
To comply with Section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

 3 CONDITION: MANAGEMENT PLAN

PRE-USE

Prior to the first use of the development hereby permitted, a Management Plan shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Plan shall include details of noise 
management, security management and traffic/ parking management associated with the use of the 
site, including EV Charging and Accessible Parking. Contact details shall also be provided (including 
postal address, email address and telephone number) of the person to be contacted for external 
enquires and complaints about any issues arising from the use of the site and shall include a 
commitment to keep this information up to date. Thereafter, the development hereby approved shall 
continue to be managed permanently in accordance with the approved management arrangements. 
 
Reason:
To ensure that the proposed use complies with the submitted details and does not give rise to 
unacceptable noise and disturbance to near neighbours, or cause parking problems and to ensure 
compliance with policy DEV2 and DEV29 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan, 
the accompanying Supplementary planning Document 2020 and the NPPF.

 4 CONDITION: TRAVEL PLAN

PRE-USE

Prior to the first use of the development hereby permitted, a Staff and Visitor Travel Plan shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Staff and Visitor Travel 
Plan shall be prepared in accordance with policy and best practice. The plan should primarily focus 
on non-match day use. From the date of first use the developer shall operate the approved Travel 
Plan.

Page 17



 
The Staff and Visitor Travel Plan shall include practical methods to encourage modes of transport 
other than the private car such as:
o Travel information provision to be provided with event invites, in particular bus and rail use 

(including park and ride) and safe recommended walking routes
o Promotion of car sharing amongst Staff and Visitors
o Provision of shower and changing facilities for staff
o Measures to regulate the management and use of permitted car parking areas and mitigate 

against overspill on-street parking
o Mechanisms for monitoring and review
o The appointment of a Travel Plan Coordinator and notification to the Local Planning 

Authority of their contact details
o Measures for enforcement of the Travel Plan, should agreed objectives and targets not be 

met
o An agreed timescale for implementation of the agreed measures.
 
Reason:
The Local Planning Authority considers that such measures need to be taken in order to reduce 
reliance on the use of private cars (particularly single occupancy journeys) and to assist in the 
promotion of more sustainable travel choices in accordance with Policy DEV29 of the Plymouth and 
South West Devon JLP 2019 and NPPF.

 5 CONDITION: EXTERNAL LIGHTING

PRE-USE

The development shall not be brought into use until details of the external lighting of the marquee 
and external areas have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The approved details shall be implemented before the development is brought into use and retained 
as such thereafter.
 
Reason:
To protect the general amenity of the area from any harmfully polluting effects and avoid conflict 
with Policies DEV1 and DEV2 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan (2014-2034) 
2019 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

 6 CONDITION: REFUSE

PRE-USE

The development hereby approved shall not operate until details of refuse storage facilities and 
refuse storage plan for the development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The details are to include the location and design of the facilities and 
arrangement for the provision of the bins. The approved refuse storage facilities shall then be 
implemented before the premises is brought into use. Thereafter the refuse storage facilities and 
refuse storage plan shall operate in accordance with approved details.
 
Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the surrounding area and highway safety, in accordance 
with Policies DEV1 and DEV2 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan (2014-2034) 
2019 and the National Planning Policy Framework

Page 18



 7 CONDITION: TEMPORARY USE (REINSTATEMENT)

The marquee hereby permitted shall be removed and the land restored to its former condition on 
or before 10th January 2028. The use to which this permission relates shall not be carried out after 
the expiry date. Any structures or works implemented under this permission shall be removed from 
the site no later than the expiry date and the land restored to its former condition on or before that 
date. 
 
Reason:
In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the temporary use to which this permission relates 
will by the said date have fulfilled its required purpose. The use and development are not considered 
to be suitable for permanent retention due to its design and a more permanent solution would need 
to be proposed in accordance policies DEV20 and PLY58 of the Plymouth & South West Devon Joint 
Local Plan 2014-2034 (2019) and the National Planning Policy Framework.

 8 CONDITION: TRANSPORT STATEMENT

The development shall be implemented and monitored in strict accordance with the submitted 
Transport Statement dated 23rd October 2024. 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety, in accordance with Policy DEV29 of the Plymouth & South 
West Devon Joint Local Plan 2014-2034 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

 9 CONDITION: VENUE CAPACITY

The site shall not at any one time be occupied by more than 600 persons, excluding staff. 

Reason:
To ensure that the proposed use does not give rise to unacceptable noise and disturbance to near 
neighbours, or cause parking problems and to ensure compliance with policy DEV2 and DEV29 of 
the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan, the accompanying Supplementary planning 
Document 2020 and the NPPF.

10 CONDITION: OPENING HOURS

The marquee hereby approved shall only be operational during 08.00 to 00.30 hours.

Reason:
To protect the residential and general amenity of the area from any harmfully polluting effects, 
including noise and disturbance and avoid conflict with Policies DEV1 and DEV2 of the Plymouth and 
South West Devon Joint Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

11 CONDITION: MATCH DAY

On match days the marquee shall not be open to the general public and only be open to members of 
the Green Taverners (full membership or day membership). 
 
Reason:
To ensure that the proposed use does not give rise to unacceptable noise and disturbance to near 
neighbours, or cause parking problems and to ensure compliance with policy DEV2 and DEV29 of 
the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan, the accompanying Supplementary planning 
Document 2020 and the NPPF.

Page 19



12 CONDITION: TREE/HEDGEROWS TO BE RETAINED/PROTECTED
 
The trees and hedges located to the southern boundary of the application site shall be retained and 
not cut down, uprooted or destroyed, nor shall any tree be pruned without the written approval of 
the Local Planning Authority. Any pruning approved shall be carried out in accordance with BS 3998: 
2010 Tree Work Recommendations.
 
The erection of barriers and ground protection for the retained tree or hedgerows on the southern 
boundary shall be undertaken in accordance with Section 6.2 of BS 5837:2012 Trees in Relation to 
Design, Demolition and Construction - Recommendations before any equipment, machinery or 
materials are brought onto the site for the purposes of the development, and shall be maintained 
until all equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been removed from the site. Nothing shall 
be stored or placed in any area fenced in accordance with this condition and the ground levels within 
those areas shall not be altered, nor shall any excavation be made, without the written consent of 
the Local Planning Authority.
 
Reason:
To ensure that trees or hedgerows retained are protected during construction work and thereafter 
are properly maintained, if necessary by replacement, in accordance with Policy DEV28 of the 
Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework 
 
 

13 CONDITION: NOISE

No public entertainment or public address system whatsoever, including but not limited to amplified 
sound or the playing of amplified music, shall take place on site other than within the marquee.

Reason:
To protect the residential and general amenity of the area from any harmfully polluting effects and 
avoid conflict with Policies DEV1 and DEV2 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan 
(2014-2034) 2019 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

INFORMATIVES

1 INFORMATIVE: (£0 CIL LIABILITY) DEVELOPMENT DOES NOT ATTRACT A 
COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY CONTRIBUTION

The Local Planning Authority has assessed that this development, although not exempt from liability 
under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended), will not attract a levy 
payment, due to its size or nature, under our current charging schedule. The Levy is subject to 
change and you should check the current rates at the time planning permission first permits 
development (if applicable) see www.plymouth.gov.uk/cil for guidance.

Further information on CIL can be found on our website here: 
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningapplications/communityinfrastructur
elevy 

More information and CIL Forms can be accessed via the Planning Portal: 
https://www.planningportal.co.uk/info/200126/applications/70/community_infrastructure_levy/5 

Page 20

https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningapplications/communityinfrastructurelevy
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningapplications/communityinfrastructurelevy
https://www.planningportal.co.uk/info/200126/applications/70/community_infrastructure_levy/5


More detailed information on CIL including process flow charts, published by the Ministry of 
Housing, Local Communities and Government can also be found here: 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/community-infrastructure-levy 

 2 INFORMATIVE: CONDITIONAL APPROVAL (NO NEGOTIATION)

In accordance with the requirements of Article 31 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2010 and the National Planning Policy 
Framework, the Council has worked in a positive and pro-active way and has imposed planning 
conditions to enable the grant of planning permission.

 3 INFORMATIVE: TRAVEL PLAN

The document required in connection with the  relevant travel plan condition  should be based 
upon the Council's Travel Plan Guide for Developments in Plymouth  published on the Council's 
website.  The guidance is available at this link : 
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningandbuildingcontrol/travelplans or can be obtained by emailing 
Travelplans@plymouth.gov.uk    

Further information  on the Council's Travel Plan Audit and Monitoring Fee which may be 
applicable  is also contained in the Travel Plan guide and also in the Strategic Planning and 
Infrastructure Fees  Policy  which can be viewed here: 
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningandbuildingcontrol/planningapplications/planningapplicationfee
s 

 4 INFORMATIVE: BIODIVERSITY NET GAIN AND MINOR DEVELOPMENT

In accordance with The Biodiversity Gain Requirements (Exemptions) Regulations 2024, this 
application is considered to be de minimis and exempt from Biodiversity Net Gain requirements. 
Therefore, this application is not subject to the mandatory Biodiversity Gain condition.

Page 21

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/community-infrastructure-levy
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningandbuildingcontrol/travelplans
mailto:Travelplans@plymouth.gov.uk
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningandbuildingcontrol/planningapplications/planningapplicationfee


This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Applications Determined Since Last Committee
Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

15/10/2024 24/01238/ERS103 Cormac Company Ltd Request for a EIA screening opinion for a 
proposed Waste Recycling Facility

Land At Breakwater Hill Plymouth 
PL4 0RJ 

Helen BlacklockESRI  Completed

15/10/2024 24/00529/FUL Plymouth City Council Change of use, alterations and extension of 
existing building from Youth 
Centre/Community Centre to Health Hub (Sui 
Generis Use); Construction of a linked two 
storey hub building; Formation of new 
vehicular access and blocking up of existing 
access; and associated works.

Community Centre Frederick Street 
West Plymouth PL1 5JW 

Helen BlacklockGrant Conditionally

15/10/2024 24/00998/FUL Mrs Lisa Lonie Loft extension with rear dormer 41 De La Hay Avenue Plymouth PL3 
4HS 

Ethan BellGrant Conditionally

15/10/2024 24/01081/FUL Mr & Miss James & 
Hannah Robertson & 
Parfitt

Single storey rear extension and twostorey 
side extension

92 Furneaux Road Plymouth PL2 
3EU 

Luke ValentineRefuse

17/10/2024 23/01431/CDM ADC Kimberley 
(Derriford) Limited & 
Plymouth City Council

Condition Discharge: Conditions 12, 13, 14, 
16, 18, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24 & 25 of application 
22/00129/FUL

Land At Former Seaton Army 
Barracks Parade Ground  William 
Prance Road  Derriford  Plymouth 
PL6 5ZD 

Mr Alistair WagstaffAgreed Condition 
Details

17/10/2024 24/00505/CDM ADC Kimberley 
(Derriford) Limited & 
Plymouth City Council

Condition Discharge: Conditions 9, 12 & 13 of 
application 22/02127/S73

Land North Of Former Seaton 
Barracks Parade Ground & South 
Of Derriford Business Park 
Derriford Plymouth

Mr Alistair WagstaffAgreed Condition 
Details

17/10/2024 24/00951/CDM ADC Kimberley 
(Derriford) Limited & 
Plymouth City Council

Condition Discharge: Conditions: 15, 29, 30, 
31, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36 and 38 of 22/00129/FUL

Land At Former Seaton Army 
Barracks Parade Ground  William 
Prance Road  Derriford  Plymouth 
PL6 5ZD 

Mr Alistair WagstaffAgreed Condition 
Details

05 November 2024 Page 1 of 7

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 7



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

17/10/2024 24/00871/FUL Miss Justine Oliver Replacement rear extension, replacement 
and relocation of side garage and removal of 
rear/side chimney.

29 Outland Road Plymouth PL2 
3DA 

Cody BeavanGrant Conditionally

17/10/2024 24/01071/ADV Armadillo Self Storage Proposed illuminated external signage 24  26 George Place Plymouth PL1 
3NY 

Luke ValentineGrant Conditionally

17/10/2024 24/01092/FUL Mr Thomas New hardstanding 6 Ashford Road Plymouth PL4 7BN Ethan BellGrant Conditionally

18/10/2024 24/00378/CDM Mr Ian Baker Condition Discharge: Conditions 2 (Travel 
Plan), 3 (Ecology), 4 (Renewable Energy), 5 
(Drainage), 6 (CTMP) & 7 (Dilapidation 
Survey) of application 23/01316/FUL

Mill Ford School Rochford Crescent 
Plymouth PL5 2PY 

Mr Macauley PotterAgreed Condition 
Details

18/10/2024 24/00993/CDM Mr Martin Cooke Condition Discharge: Condition 5 (Bird and 
bat bricks) of application 22/00652/S73

1  47 (Odds) Alcester Close  
Plymouth PL2 1EA 

Mr Jon FoxAgreed Condition 
Details

18/10/2024 24/01246/CDM Mr Mark Russell Condition Discharge: Condition 2 (Cladding) 
of application 24/00547/REM

19 Meadow Park Plymouth PL9 
9NX 

Ms Abbey EdwardsAgreed Condition 
Details

18/10/2024 24/01273/AMD Mr Paul Pound Relocation of vents at 5th floor level from 
window panels to wall panels.

HMS Drake, Saltash Road Keyham 
Plymouth PL2 2DQ 

Mr Macauley PotterNonmaterial Minor 
Amendment Agreed

18/10/2024 24/00622/LBC Mr Dawson Repairs and alterations to studio building inc. 
replacement fascias, rainwater goods and 
velux windows, repairs to slate roof and 
internal alterations (partretrospective)

98 Church Road Plymstock 
Plymouth PL9 9BG 

Miss Emily GodwinGrant Conditionally

05 November 2024 Page 2 of 7

P
age 24



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

18/10/2024 24/01021/FUL Mr Julian Cooper Proposed roof replacement resulting in 
100mm height increase, new external 
aluminium downpipes, new double access 
door and minor external changes.

M020 Building Within Morice Yard 
HMNB Devonport Plymouth

Mr Macauley PotterGrant Conditionally

18/10/2024 24/01029/LBC Mr Liam Kelly Installation of 2no. roof mounted ventilation 
cowls.

Devonport Dockyard Saltash Road 
Keyham Plymouth PL1 4SG 

Mr Macauley PotterGrant Conditionally

18/10/2024 24/01054/FUL Mr Habban Ullah Conversion of dwellinghouse to 2no. flats 
(Class C3) (partretrospective)

15 Wesley Avenue Plymouth PL3 
4RA 

Mr Sam LewisGrant Conditionally

22/10/2024 24/00693/FUL Amazon UK Services 
Limited

Ancillary vehicle servicing and maintenance 
building.

Thornbury Road  Plymouth  PL6 
7PP

Mr Macauley PotterGrant Conditionally

23/10/2024 24/00986/CDM Mr Kim Greeno Condition Discharge: Conditions Condition 3 
(CEMP) & 7 (Air Source Heat Pump) of 
application 24/00370/FUL

5 Darklake Close Plymouth PL6 7TJ Mr Jon FoxAgreed Condition 
Details

23/10/2024 24/01202/CDMLB Mr Chris Duggan Condition Discharge Condition 15 (Ceiling 
Works),16 (Mechanical Extraction Plumbing 
and Electrical Works), and 19 (WC Details) of 
Listed Building Consent application 
23/00311/LBC

The Guildhall Royal Parade 
Plymouth PL1 2EL 

Helen BlacklockAgreed Condition 
Details

23/10/2024 24/01057/LBC Mr Niall Ingham Lowering of 10no. existing window openings 
on east and west elevations to create glazed 
doors/windows and installation of new 
glazed lobby door within existing north 
entrance

New Cooperage Building Royal 
William Yard Plymouth PL1 3RP 

Mr Sam LewisGrant Conditionally

24/10/2024 24/01272/CDM Tarun Cheema Condition Discharge: Condition 12 
(Community Use Agreement) for application 
23/01596/FUL

Stoke Damerel Community College 
Somerset Place Plymouth PL3 4BD 

Mr Daniel ThorningAgreed Condition 
Details

05 November 2024 Page 3 of 7

P
age 25



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

24/10/2024 24/01387/AMD Mr Tony Carson Nonmaterial Amendment: To change the 
existing roofing tiles from concrete to natural 
slate.

68 Compton Avenue Plymouth PL3 
5DB 

Ethan BellNonmaterial Minor 
Amendment Agreed

24/10/2024 24/00869/FUL Mr Ian Nicholls Single storey rear extension, demolition of 
garage and new garage to side.

139 Elburton Road Plymouth PL9 
8JD 

Joanna ChurchillGrant Conditionally

24/10/2024 24/00968/FUL Gemma Newton Single storey front extension for residential 
annex

23 Saunders Walk Plymouth PL6 
6PA 

Luke ValentineGrant Conditionally

24/10/2024 24/01050/LBC Mr Gareth Williams Central Slot Inspection enabling works  
thunderbolt, asphalt anchor and guide 
system anchor detail

HMNB Devonport  Plymouth PL2 
2BG  

Mr Jon FoxGrant Conditionally

24/10/2024 24/01075/LBC Babcock International 
Group

Replacement of existing roof sheets with 
composite insulated roof sheet, cap existing 
parapet stones, installation of roof handrails 
and extension to access stairway to facilitate 
maintenance activities.

N209, Devonport Dockyard Saltash 
Road Keyham Plymouth PL1 4SG 

Mr Macauley PotterGrant Conditionally

24/10/2024 24/01076/LBC Babcock International 
Group

Replacement of existing roof sheets with 
composite insulated roof sheet, cap existing 
parapet stones and installation of roof 
handrails and access stairway to facilitate 
maintenance activities.

N186, Devonport Dockyard Saltash 
Road Keyham Plymouth PL1 4SG 

Mr Macauley PotterGrant Conditionally

24/10/2024 24/01088/FUL Mr Patrick Rule Demolition of existing garage and 
construction of new enlarged garage.

55 Bridwell Road Plymouth PL5 
1AB 

Cody BeavanGrant Conditionally

24/10/2024 24/01269/ADV Mr E Parker Company logo and banner on building Pomphlett Jetty Breakwater Road 
Plymouth PL9 7HJ 

Miss Emily GodwinGrant Conditionally

05 November 2024 Page 4 of 7

P
age 26



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

25/10/2024 24/00371/FUL Mr Darren Wills Construction of 5no. affordable dwellings 
with associated parking.

Land Adj. To Wilmot Gardens 
Plymouth PL5 3TP  

Mr Macauley PotterGrant Conditionally

25/10/2024 24/00668/FUL Mr James Mitchell Decking to the rear of the property, to cover 
the width of the house, circa 3.6 metres, and 
extend to the rear wall of the garden, 
maximum 4.5 metres.

248 Beaumont Road Plymouth PL4 
9EQ 

Ethan BellGrant Conditionally

25/10/2024 24/00959/FUL Adam De PaorEvan Enlarged front porch, rear extension, 
replacement rear garden outbuilding, vehicle 
hardstand and dropped kerb.

5 Birch Pond Road Plymouth PL9 
7PG 

Joanna ChurchillGrant Conditionally

25/10/2024 24/01237/TPO Mr Imran Saif T1 Sweet Chestnut and T2 Oak removal of 
epicormic growth on main stems up to a 
height of 7m. T3 Sycamore removal of the 3 
lowest branches growing towards house with 
a maximum diameter of 75mm.

4 Blue Haze Close Plymouth PL6 
7HR 

Alan RoweGrant Conditionally

28/10/2024 24/01031/FUL L Elisseos Conversion of rear garage into 1no. dwelling 
(Class C3), inc. single storey rear extension 
and creation of second storey

132 Devonport Road Plymouth PL1 
5RF  

Mr Sam LewisRefuse

29/10/2024 24/01074/LBC Mrs Tess Blight Removal of sand cement pointing and 
repointing in lime (Part Retrospective).

The Stables 41 Conqueror Drive 
Plymouth PL5 3UT 

Cody BeavanGrant Conditionally

31/10/2024 24/01230/CDM Mr & Mrs Farrow Discharge of Condition 5: Green Roof 
Specification on 24/00341/FUL

12 Great Berry Road Plymouth PL6 
5AU 

Luke ValentineAgreed Condition 
Details

31/10/2024 24/00988/FUL Mr Jaswinder Dhariwal Change of use from dental surgery to 3no. 
flats (Class C3) inc. first floor rear extension 
and rear bike store

31 North Road East Plymouth PL4 
6AY 

Mr Sam LewisGrant Conditionally

05 November 2024 Page 5 of 7

P
age 27



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

31/10/2024 24/01089/FUL Mr Gary Tyas Single storey front extension 15 Laira Avenue Plymouth PL3 6AJ Luke ValentineGrant Conditionally

01/11/2024 24/01214/16 Cornerstone Replacement of 18m mast and associated 
ancillary equipment with 20m mast and 
associated ancillary equipment within 
extended site compound

Land At Barn Farm Hooe Lane 
Staddiscombe PL9 9SP

Mr Sam LewisPrior Approval 
Required & Given

01/11/2024 24/01310/CDM Mrs Nicola Daniel Application to discharge condition 5 
(relocation of bus stop) of approval 
21/01895/FUL

Land At Clowance Street  
Devonport Plymouth PL1 4LQ  

Mr Jon FoxAgreed Condition 
Details

01/11/2024 24/00369/AMD Nudge Community 
Builders Ltd & Eat 
Work Art Ltd

Nonmaterial amendment: proposed external 
alterations of application 22/01695/FUL

34  36 Union Street Plymouth PL1 
2EY 

Miss Amy ThompsonNonmaterial Minor 
Amendment Agreed

01/11/2024 24/01297/AMD Nudge Community 
Builders Ltd & Eat 
Work Art Ltd

Minor Amendment to proposed internal 
layout (amending condition no. 1  Approved 
plans) and amendments to trigger points for 
planning conditions 3 (Further highway 
details), 4 (Cycle provision), 5 (Security), 7 
(District energy) & 9 (Further details) of 
application 22/01695/FUL

34  36 Union Street Plymouth PL1 
2EY 

Miss Amy ThompsonNonmaterial Minor 
Amendment Agreed

01/11/2024 24/00877/LBC Mr Paul Wooldridge Replacement kitchen and landing windows, 
replacement of side window with door, and 
lobby/staircase alterations

23 Clarence Place Stonehouse 
Plymouth PL1 3JW

Mr Sam LewisGrant Conditionally

01/11/2024 24/00989/LBC Plymouth City Council Internal demolition and external works to 
Building B which include waterproofing works

Tinside Pool, Hoe Road Plymouth 
PL1 3DE 

Miss Amy ThompsonGrant Conditionally

01/11/2024 24/01015/FUL Mr Kamaran Murad Erection of 23 storey building comprising a 
hot food takeaway and launderette (both sui 
generis) at ground floor and 2 residential 
apartments (Class C3) at first floor level with 
car parking and associated works

604 Wolseley Road Plymouth PL5 
1TE 

Mr Daniel ThorningGrant Conditionally

05 November 2024 Page 6 of 7

P
age 28



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

01/11/2024 24/01215/ADV The Incorporated 
Trustees of the UCKG 
HelpCentre

One Fascia sign with illuminated letters. One 
Illuminated double sided projection sign. One 
Nonilluminated framed sign hanging in front 
window.

First Floor, 55  57 Exeter Street 
Plymouth PL4 0AH 

Ethan BellGrant Conditionally

01/11/2024 24/01227/LBC Plymouth City Council Internal fitout works to Building B Tinside Pool, Hoe Road Plymouth 
PL1 3DE 

Miss Amy ThompsonGrant Conditionally

01/11/2024 24/00103/CDM Mr Richard Lewis Condition Discharge: Conditions 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 & 
8 of application 23/00529/FUL

Land Adj. 11 Roborough Avenue 
Plymouth PL6 6AG 

Mr Jon FoxCondition Discharge 
Split

01/11/2024 24/00364/CDM Nudge Community 
Builders Ltd & Eat 
Work Art Ltd

Condition Discharge: Condition 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 
& 19 of application 22/01695/FUL

34  36 Union Street Plymouth PL1 
2EY 

Miss Amy ThompsonCondition Discharge 
Split

05 November 2024 Page 7 of 7

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Planning Appeal Decisions between 15/10/2024 and 04/11/2024

Date of Decision 04/11/2024

Ward St Budeaux

Application Number 24/00289/FUL

Decision Appeal Dismissed

Address of Site 112 Pemros Road Plymouth PL5 1NG 

Proposal Proposed formation of 2no front bay windows

Appeal Process Written Representations

Officers Name Luke Valentine

Synopsis of Appeals Planning Inspector found that the proposed alterations to the front bay windows would harm the character and appearance of the area. This 
was in line with the officer's view that the proposal would be in breach of DEV20.Of note, the Planning Inspector gave moderate weight to the 
potential impact of the proposal on the applicant's quality of life through the increase in light provision. However, this was offset by their view 
that similar benefits could be achieved via a less incongruous design.

05 November 2024 Page 1 of 1

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	6.1 24/00893/FUL - Home Park Football Ground, Outland Road,  PL2 3DQ
	7 Planning Application Decisions Issued
	8 Appeal Decisions

